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725 655 18%

Number of Children Served Number of Families Served Percentage of Eligible Children
Served

Average Monthly Attendance: 80.86%

Public & Private Funding Received
FY 2019

Revenue a
- Explanation of Budgetary
$620,796 '
- Expenditures:

The Federally Approved 12% Indirect Rate
was maintained

$5,160,683
. $5,038,252

Spending patterns for program supplies,
educational materials and office supplies

!“ s ' 52,144,505 remain consistent with the proposed
budget

$249,293
$30,000 $385,989
W Fhoenix Ave Rents B Head Start Federal FY19 A 3% COLA was awarded to all staff in
& Early Head Start Federal FY19 Head Start Supplemental Janua ry 2019,
m Commonwealth Preschool Partnership Initiative m UPK

B EEC State Contracts B USDA

Program Information Report Snapshot (PIR):

Early Head Start Head Start
* 92% of children received medical exams * 97.5% of children received medical exams
* 84 % of children received dental exams » 92% of children received dental exams
e 38.6% of children had an IFSP e 8.7% of children had an IEP

** See attached for the Community Needs Assessmemt Update , Financial Audit. and the School Readiness Executive
Summary,. The School Readiness Summary demonstrates parent mvolvement activities and preparations for children

transitioning to Kimdergarten.



Community Assessment Updates: 2018-2019

Community Teamwork conducts a comprehensive Needs Assessment every three years. In early August 2017,
the distributed the completed 2018-2020 Community Assessment Report and Strategic Plan. Attached are the
Key Findings that have implications for the Early Learning Program and provide an update to the 2014-2015
Head Start Community Needs Assessment conducted at the time of our initial grant application. The Early
Learning 2014-2015 Community Needs Assessment contained Head Start specific data points which were not
covered in the agency report. The full assessment has been reviewed in effort to identify changes within the
characteristics of the community. Below is a summary of additional significant change found via newer public
data sources during this review.

Section 1: Demographic make-up of Head Start eligible children and families, including their
estimated number, geographic location, homelessness status, and ethnic composition.

Strategies for Children works to ensure that Massachusetts invests the resources needed for all children, from
birth-age five, to access high-quality early education programs that prepare them for success in school and life.
In their efforts, they aggregate facts and data on the children and families in each community in the State.
Economically disadvantaged is calculated based on a student’s participation in one or more of the following
state-administered programs: the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP); the Transitional
Assistance for Families with Dependent Children (TAFDC); the Department of Children and Families’ (DCF) foster
care program; and MassHealth (Medicaid). Sources: Massachusetts Department of Early Education and Care,
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, US Census 2010, ACS 12-16.

Number and Location of Eligible Children, 2017:

Child Population: Birth-5 Source: Strategies for Children

|Lowell  [Bilterica |Chelmsford i_Dracut :Tewksbury |Westford |Dunstable |Peperrell "Tyngsborough “Wilmi?lg_torl |
# of Children 9,243 2,664 2,197 2,034 1,812 1,468 175 739_| 727 1,608
# of children living |
below the poverty

line 33.90%! 5.10% 1.50%  13.70% 4.10% 0 18.80% 6.10%|  19.90%) 4.50%




* According to these estimates, approximately 3,805 children under five years old live in poverty in the
Community Teamwork service area.

* These estimates additionally indicate some notable shifts since the 2014-2015 Community Needs

Assessment. Source: US Census Bureau, 2009-2013 5 Year American Community Survey and Strategies for Children
Community Data 2018

The number of eligible children:

o)

» Atthis time, 33.9% of children birth-five, who reside in Lowell, live below the poverty line. Although the

Has decreased from a reported 2162 children to 3133 in Lowell; this is a decrease year-over-year

for the city of Lowell
are now being identified in both Dunstable and Pepperell, {now 18.8% and 6.1% of total birth-
five population respectively) as the population in these two towns begins to reflect more
economically disadvantaged families
has almost doubled from 2.4% to 3.7% in Pepperell from 2017 to 2019
has increased in Billerica (+.9%), Chelmsford (+1.5%), Dracut (+1.7%), Dunstable (+.5%),
Pepperell (+1.3%), Tyngsborough (+1.2%) and Wilmington (+.1%)

Commonwealth of Massachusetts has one of the lowest poverty rates in the country, there has been a
lot of variation in Lowell’s economic stability. While the poverty rate has increased by 11% since 2012,

the unemployment rate has decreased by more than 50% since 2013. The median household income for

Lowell residents is $48,002, which is a slight decrease from the $49,452 reported in the 2014-2015

Community Needs Assessment. Source: Community Teamwork Community Assessment Report and Strategic Action Plan

Children and Families experiencing homelessness:

The Agency Community Assessment evidenced Housing/Homelessness as the top need identified by

respondents.

During the 2018-2019 program year, 46 enrolled children experienced homelessness (15 enrolled in Early Head
Start, 31 enrolled in Head Start). Of these families, only 9 (19.5 %) acquired housing during the program year.
This is an increase of 3.5% over the 13% of families that acquired housing the 2017-2018 program vyear.

Racial and ethnic composition of eligible families:

Race
American Indian or

Aslan
Black or African
American
other Pacific
Islander
White

Other

 Alaskan Native i

Biracial/Multi-raclal

Cumulative

2014-2018
HS

631

2014-2015
EHS

21

27

111

46
13
218

2015~ 2015- 2016- 2016- 2017- 2017- 2018- 2018-2019
2016 HS |2016 EHS (2017 HS 2017 EHS [2018HS |2018 EHS 2018 EHS |HS
£ I—1 i o o o o o
74 19 57 12 58 14 14 a5
69 32 67 19 67 20 15 81
1 o o o o ) ol 2
323 129) 329 97| 331 104 113 318|
85|  as 97 28 97 27 27 89
18 13 12 6 8 8| 1] 10|
571 238 563 162| 561 173 170 545




2014-2015 [2014-2015 [2015-  [2015-  |2016- |2016- |2017- |2017-  |2018-2019/2018-

Ethnicity HS EHS 2016 HS (2016 EHS (2017 HS |2017 EHS (2018 HS (2018 EHS |EHS 2019 HS
Hispanic or Latino
Origin 296 107 255 99 258 72 261 80 89 275|
Non Hispanic/ Non
Latino Origin 335 111 316 139 305 90 300 93 81 270
Cumulative
Enroliment 631 218 571 238 563 162 561 173 170| 545

Source: Program information Reports: 2014-2018 *PIR dota for 2018-2019 collected last on April 30, 2019

A review of our PIR data during the 2018-2019 year found the following Race, Ethnicity and Primary Language
information for children served:

e 60% were White

e 16% were Bi-Racial/Multi-Racial

» 13% were Black or African American

e 8% were Asian

e 1% identified as “other”

e 50% were Hispanic or Latino, 49 % were Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino

It is notable that the program has seen in increase in our service to the Asian community (+ 2%) and a
considerable increase Hispanic/Latino community (+6%). PIR data at this time, does continue to indicate a small
increase in diversity in comparison to the 2014-2015 program year (of which, 61% of children served were White
and 13 % were Bi-racial/Multi-Racial).

While the Program Information Report indicates that 70% of families speak English. This is a decrease of 4%
since last year. During the 2018-2019 program year, we have seen a slight change in the composition of
languages spoken since the 2014-2015 program year. Most notably, we are seeing the remaining 29% of
languages spoken consist of varied African, Caribbean, Middle-Eastern, South Asian languages, European/Slavic
as well as Spanish. This may be a reflection of the Greater Lowell area being a welcoming region for refugees.
The International Institute of New England currently services families from Afghanistan, Burma, China, Cuba,
Somalia, Democratic Republic of Congo Iraq, Sudan and Uganda and Syria. The support services offered by the
International Institute result in referrals to the program.

Section 2: Other Child Development and Child Care Programs:

. Eaycducationand Care :Soume Strateples for Chidren Ancil2019
Lowell Bi"ericar__ Chelmsford Dracut | Tewl Y | D VPeperreII”

% of children under age 6 with I

all parents in the labor force | 70.4%] 71.9% 68.5%: 63.5% 84.8% 71.3%| 39.8% 66.5%) 72.4%)| 78.3%
¥ of preschool aged children 35
years [_______ 4466: 1361 1107i 1063 954 896 110, 406 413 841
years i | e kL
% of children enrolled in an %
early education program
{estimate only} i 46.1%: 63.4%] 71.3%; 48.5% 62.3% 76.8%, 51.%_ 68.5% 63.5% 80.2%
{
# of public schools w/ prescheol |
classrooms I 13| 1 1 1 1 1 1 1) 1| 2
4
# of licensed center-based i
programs 15! 13 1 1 2 1 1 3 3 ?

# of licensed family child care
praviders 262 38 25: 43 L 2?_ 12 1 6 _8 14




Dracut and Pepperrell continue to have an increasing percentage of children living below the poverty
line each year and the lowest percentage of children enrolled in an early education program.

All ten cities in our catchment area have seen a statistical increase in the % of children enrolled in an
early education program.

As of May 2019, the Massachusetts State Waitlist for childcare (Kinderwait) reports a total of 986
children in our catchment area who are in need of full time childcare. Of the 986 total children on the
waitlist, 256 of these are infants or toddlers, the largest majority of those residing in Lowell.

‘Childcare Waitlist by Location and Age _ Source: EEC - Kinderwait collected May2019

locations | Infants2moto15mo | Toddlers15mo-29 |  Preschool29-5 |  Totals
Billerica 12 10 . 16 _ 38

IN. Billerica | 3 8 6 17
Chelmsford _‘ 8 1 .

:N. Chelmsford 8 | 8 17
‘Dracut | 27 53 7 46 126
Dunstable < o 0 | 0 | 0 |
:Pepperell 2 3 3 8
Tyngshoro 3 2 4 9
Tewksbury 9 16 12 37
‘Westford | 0 3 4 7
‘Wilmington ! ] 4 7 12
Lowell-01850 37 . 41 _ 39 . 117

Lowell - 01851 50 _ 67 | 100 _ 27
Lowell-01852 68 . 64 &
Llowell - 01854 34 ‘ 48 9 126

Totals | 256 340 T

The need for childcare continues to be evident in the community as indicated by this waitlist in
comparison to available childcare slots. Most notable are the waitlist numbers for Infant and Toddler
care exceed that of Preschool aged need. For example: in the city of Lowell alone, the Department of
Early Education and Care reports licensed Infant and Mixed age Infant child care capacity in large group
center-based programs to meet only 42% % of the infants on the waitlist.

Group Care Licensed capacity Lowell, MA
Source: Secondary Records Access Department

June 2018 Massachusetts Department of Early Education and Care
Mixed Age Toddler- Mixed Age Infant-
Infants Toddlers Preschool Preschool Toddler
35 98 847 9 54




Section 4: Data regarding the education health, nutrition, and social service needs of Head Stat eligible
children and families

Social Services:

The program and community have seen a steady increase in service needs to support families impacted
by substance use. In the city of Lowell, the number of opioid-related deaths was 7x higher in 2016 than
2012. This was the highest increase among the Massachusetts Gateway Cities.

fn 2017, there was a marked decrease in Opioid related overdose deaths in the following gateway cities;
Lowell, Lawrence and Haverhill.

Number of Opioid Related Overdose Deaths
in Gateway Cities

ot dres 2013 2014 2015

2016 2017
Lowell 25 39 59 63 52
Lawrence 10 25 25 46 37
Haverhill 8 35 30 36 28
Methuen 6 13 6 13 20
Salem 7 13 13 19 21
Peabody 12 14 11 9 23
Massachuse| 961 1361 1651 1933 1945

Source: Massachusetts Department of Public Health ~ Posted May 20:



Key Findings:

¢ 89.4% of our Infants and Toddlers are
either meeting or exceeding expecta-
tions in the area of Cognitive Develop-
ment.

Mathematics continues to be an area of
learning that shows the most opportuni-
ty for growth. However the program did
see a large increase in the amount of
Infants and Toddlers meeting or exceed-
ing in the area of Mathematics from
69.4% to 80.9% in the Spring our efforts
and impacts are highlighted below.

PERCENTAGE OF EARLY HEAD START
CHILDREN MEETING OR EXCEEDING
DEVELOPMENTAL EXPECTATIONS
FALL 2018/SPRING 2019 COMPARISON

= Fall 2018 Meeting or Exceeding W Spring 2019 Meeting or Exceeding

89.40% 88.80%

86.00%

79.30% 82 10% 84.50% 87% 82.70% 82.8 80.90%
69.40%
I | I
motional Physical Language Cognitve Literacy Math

Sodal E

Mathematics Dimension Breakdown

Early Head Start
Below Expectations
Fall/Spring
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Language Dimension Breakdown
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Fall/Spring
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Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:

In the Fall, 30.6% of our Infants and Toddlers fell below
expectations, in the Mathematics Objective, with an
identified struggle in Objective 20B, Quantifying. Our

mid year effort included a targeted approach to include

more intentional math experiences throughout the dai-

ly routine. Educators also utilized the EHS Early Learning

Outcomes Framework Crosswalk to offer more activities

that encouraged an increased awareness of quantity. In
the Spring, we saw that 37% of children previously fall-
ing below expectations in Objective 20b, decreased to
just 16%. Currently 84% of our Infants and Toddlers

meeting or exceeding in this objective.

Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:

In the Fall, 37.7% of our Infants and Toddlers fell below expec-
tations, in the Language Objective, with an identified need in
Objective 10A, Engages in Conversation. While we did identify

that 45 % of enrolled EHS children have an Individualized Fami-

ly Service Plan for Language, our Educators did make a con-
scious effort to intentionally plan, document, and observe con-
versations with children. The amount of observations of chil-
dren engaging in conversations increased from just 75 in the
Fall to 155 in the Spring. With this increased focus on lan-
guage, we saw a drastic decrease from 40.2% of children fall-
ing below expectations in Objective 10A in the Fall, to just
17.3% in the Spring. Currently 82.7% of our Infants and Tod-
dlers meeting or exceeding in this objective.




Key Findings:

¢  Physical Development remains our
strongest area of development for
our preschool children with 77% of
children enrolled either meeting or
exceeding expectations.

Literacy continues to be an area of
growth, with 37% of our preschool 40%
children falling below expectations.

FALL 2018/SPRING 2019 COMPARISON

& falt 2018 Meeting or Exceeding

Sodial Emotional

PERCENTAGE OF HEAD START
CHILDREN MEETING OR EXCEEDING
DEVELOPMENTAL EXPECTATIONS

Spring 2019 Meeting or Exceeding

Z6.2% 71%, 70% 6 70.0%
8.6% 0.
I I IG.,I% I I l 6I I
Physica! Language Cognitve Literacy Math

Head Start Mid-Y

Cognitive Dimension Breakdown

Head Start
Below Expectations

Fall/Spring
406
e som  3380%
30 A% 7% 27.70%
25% 20.70% 21.20%
o 15.20% 14 20%
o I £ 30 I O 10 Mo 6.10%

5%
iy 3
2 ]

Literacy Dimension Breakdown

Head Start
Below Expectations

Fall/Spring
:ﬁ 48% 51.00%
b 39% 39.00%
405 - 37.00%
Sk 26.00% 27.00%
20% 15005 [l 16504 17.00% W 14.00%
10% I
0%

a a

Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:

In the Fall, 30% of our Preschoolers fell below expecta-
tions, in the area of Cognitive Development with an identi-
fied need in objective 12A, Recognize & Recalls. Through-
out the school year, Educators utilized the Creative Curric-
ulum intentional teaching cards and book reading cards to

individualize for children's identified goals. Center Direc-
tors frequently observed in classrooms, as well as re-
viewed curriculum plans to ensure there was a focus on
enhancing cognitive development and individualizing
goals. We saw a decrease in the amount of preschoolers
falling below expectations in the Cognitive Objective with

33.8% in the Fall to just 14.2% in the Spring. Currently
85.8% of our Preschoolers are meeting or exceeding in this

objective.

Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:

In the Fall, 44% of our Preschoolers fell below expectations
in the area of Literacy Development with an identified
struggle in objective 19B, Write to Convey Ideas & Infor-
mation. Educators focused on enhancing a print rich envi-
ronment utilizing feedback from the ELLCO and ECERS ob-
servations. Center Directors and Educators worked togeth-
er to create an action plan for each classroom to continue
to support Literacy development. We saw a large decrease
in the number of preschoolers falling below expectations in
the Fall of 51% to only 28.4% falling below expectations.
Currently, 71.6% of our preschoolers are meeting or ex-
ceeding in this objective.




Key Findings:

Priority Families Meeting or Exceeding Developmental
¢ While Social Emotional, Physical, Expectations
and Language are strengths for chil- Spring 2019

dren enrolled who are homeless, 120%
Literacy and Mathematics are iden- [,
tified areas of growth and align with

83%
: : a0 77% 78% 75% 78% 78% 78%
our program findings.
On average, approximately 25% of
our children enrolled in Supportive
slots are currently below develop-

mental expectations.
Social Emotional Physical Language Cognitive Literacy Mathematics

In comparison with Fall data, our )
mHomeless m Supportive = Teen

children who have a Teen parent —

stayed consistent with at least 75% meetmg or exceeding expectahons

Priority Families Mid-Year Effort Outcomes

This Fall we identified a need in the area of Social Emotional development for our children who were experiencing
homelessness. We saw substantial igrowth in this area, going from more than half (63.6%) of the children falling
below expectations in the Fall to 100% either meeting or exceeding expectations in the Spring. Through individuali-
zation and implementing strategies from the Pyramid Model approach consistently, we were able to have such im-
pactful gains.

Key Findings:

Pi  Findings

¢  Asaprogram, we identified the
biggest area of growth was in
the area of Mathematics with
61.4% of children meeting or Utilizing our data from the past 4 years of child outcomes, we have acknowl-
exceeding expectations in the edged that both Early Head Start and Head Start have identified Mathematics,
EURCEE AU IUELIEE  Literacy, and Cognitive development as reoccurring developmental areas that
is a direct impact of our mid- the program has specifically focused on as an area of potential growth.
year efforts.

Educators would benefit from Professional Development that focuses on
ARCCURRICERRIEEER  hetter understanding of age appropriate developmental milestones and what
identified an area of potential this looks like for each objective in the My Teaching Strategies assessment.
gro_wth D A cur:rently We have included this in our Training and Technical Assistance Plan for the
falling below expectations. 2019-2020 school year.




e'ach'iné Practices: CLASS

o N b O W

ELP CLASS Scores
National Average Comparison
Spring 2019

2.9

telling
us?

3.2
National Average
ELP Scores

Emotional Classroom Instructional
Support Organization Support

ONMOD

W ELP Scores @ National Average

The Fall 2018 CLASS scores indicated that we were closely aligned with the National Average CLASS scores, this
remains the same for our Spring 2019 CLASS scores. Emotional Support continues to be our highest domain,
with a score of 6.4 As a program, for the past 4 years, we have focused on implementing a program-wide Pyr-
amid Model Approach. In doing so, we have seen a steady increase in our Emotional Support scores from 5.4 in
2014 to 6.4 in 2019, moving the program from the mid to high range.

In an effort to continue to increase our CLASS scores, we looked into purchasing Teachstone CLASS feedback
trainings for all Center Directors. Upon purchasing and reviewing this training, it was decided that we needed
to take a more individual approach, as the experience level of our Center Directors and use of the CLASS tool is
varied. We have now hired a consultant to meet with each of our Center Directors individually to go over effec-
tive feedback on the CLASS observation tool. The consultant will tailor her training to the needs and experienc-
es of each Center Director. These feedback training sessions will allow Center Directors to provide higher quali-
ty feedback to educators and give them the opportunity to create meaningful classroom action plans.

ommunities of Practice (COP)

Classrooms Participating in CLASS COP ticipated in a pilot Community of Practice that was
Fall 2018/Spring focused on CLASS Teaching Practices and was facili-
Comparison tated by our Child Development

Coaches.

involved have CLASS scores that continued to in-
Spring 2019 crease from the Fall of 2017 to Spring of 2019.
Fall 2018

pilot participants, the program is currently in the
planning phase to roll out Communities of Practice

" u to all educators at the James Houlares Center during

the 2019-2020 program year.

During the 2017-2018 school year, 6 educators par-

Although the COP has since ended, we are still see-
ing the positive impacts of this group. The educators

Due to the dramatic increase in CLASS scores for the



“Success isn’t just about what you accomplish, it’s about what you inspire others to do.”

0 0 e
Kathy Torres is a Teacher’s Aide in Red Room at
Children’s Village. Kathy started coaching with
Kendra in February 2019. She had moved from

Part-time as needed Teacher’s Aide to the full
time Teacher’s Aide in Red Room around the time
that she started coaching. Kathy was receptive of

coaching right off the bat and very eager to
learn. Kathy has done a great job with being truly
reflective of her own practices and applying what
she has learned through coaching into her daily
teaching practices. Through hard work and deter-
mination, Kathy has earned her CDA this past
school year. Kathy continues to bring her positivi-
ty of learning and growing into each and every
coaching session that she has and is a prime exam-
ple of what it means to be a reflective coachee.
Through coaching she has gained new perspec-
tives and knowledge that she willingly applies to
her classroom.
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-| Early Head Start had four teachers participate in a Communities of Practice. This group met 35
=—.'! times over the year where we looked at teaching practices. The group discussed and reﬂect-
— ed on their own as well as each other’s skills in the classroom. They shared ideas, successes,
- and areas of needs in a thoughtful and meaningful way. The experience was such a success
~, that we are going to continue with it next year. A round of applause go out to Kristen Heyl,
= Jennifer Herrera-Baltan, Melissa Alfonso, and Yilda Solano

Submitted by Kristin Hovey, Child Development Coach
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This past school year, the Dual Language Learner Tiger Team piloted several supplemental materials to support the learning
of Dual Language Learners in our program, as well as a potential assessment tool used to identify the specific needs of our
Dual Language Learners. These materials were piloted in 3 preschool classrooms and 1 home visiting caseload. After training
each Educator on the use of the assessment and materials, we focused on comparing child outcomes for each of these class-
rooms. In reviewing the data, we have identified increased learning outcomes in all developmental areas. Children identified
as Dual Language Learners saw positive gains in the areas of Social Emotional, Spanish Literacy, and Mathematics. Areas of
growth included Literacy and Language. We have also collected feedback from each educator in the pilot classrooms or case-
load on materials that were successful, materials that weren’t as helpful, and ideas on what other things we can purchase to
continue to support our Dual Language Learners.

Looking forward to next year, we would like to implement more pilots within the program, as well as offer the staff a train-
ing of Diversity and Culture. This has been included on the Training and Technical Assistance Plan for the 2019-2020 school
year. We plan to continue to collect and evaluate data to help us plan and implement an approach to supporting our Dual
Language Learners school readiness success.

Behavioral Health

Highlights from 2018-2019 Consultations and Efforts
Updates & Mid-year Effort Outcomes: Spring 2019

FYI's Received - 19
The Pyramid Model Leadership Teams (PMLT) hosted a regional
meeting of leadership members from programs across the Merri-

mack Valley and North Shore. FYI’s Ongoing—17

FYI's Assigned — 15

The teams are working on the five year goal in behavioral health. FYI's Discharge of services -3
They have developed and piloted a Child Behavior Incident Report

form that will be introduced to all staff in September. This project
Results of Mid-year Efforts:
was a focus of the year four, 5 year grant work. ; .
* Video as a reflection tool's now being uti-

The program continues to benefit from the external coaching that is lized and teachar back (to date) has

delivered to 2 classrooms at the Parker. The post TPOT assessment been positive.
scores for these classrooms show a significant increase since the Fall.

Gaining teacher buy- arding collecting
A Pyramid Model training for the Family Service Workers was provid- data to assistin id when and why
ed in March. The focus was on the bottom layers of the pyramid and challenging behav happening contin-
how to provide information and support to families. ues to be an ongoing challenge. This will be
a focus in the 2019-2020 program year as

we move forward with consultants, our
Three teachers, the Behavioral Health Specialist and 2 administrators workforce development team and behavior-

completed the Train the Trainer course . This means that the pro- al health team.
gram now has 6 staff who can provide the Foundations of the Pyra-
mid model training to staff.

Pyramid Model posters are displayed in each of the centers/pods.

The Behavioral Health Specialist & Lead

Teacher for Pod B provided a “Deep Dive *
The PML Teams launched a Pyramid Model post that appears weekly training for teachers on Thoughtful Transi-
on the ELP Facebook page. Thus far, we have 123 likes, 40 shares & tions. 9 teachers participated (voluntarily)

1 parent comment with her ideas on fostering teamwork among her and reported that the training has support-
children at home. ed them to have better prepared transition

plans.




P" Behavioral Health Continued

Head Start Behavior Concerns

DECA Fall 2018/Spting 2019

Head Start Resilience
DECA Fall 2018/Spring 2019

Comparison Comparison
Spri
Fall 2018 D8 Fall2018 Spring 2019 T
Goal 2019 Fall 2018 5,  Fall2018 Spring 2019
Teachets Parents Parents )
Teachers Teachers Patents Parents
Teachers
Need |<16% 14% 12% 29% 23%
= Need | <20% 8% 13% 25% 23%
Typical | 268%|  80% 73% 59% 61%
Strength | >16% 6% 15% 12% 16% Dypical |280%| 92% 87% 75% 77%
DECA Key Findings:

Although the program met the standardization in resilience and behavioral concerns, there is an increase
in the percentage of children identified with red flags for behavior from fall to spring.

Further examination of the data showed that 13 children went from typical behavior in the fall to having
behavioral concerns in spring.

What we found through data research and educator focus groups:

Teachers want more training in Pyramid Model practice.
Children’s file reviews and teacher interviews have been completed.

Educator documentation in Child Plus, regarding behavioral concerns, could be more consistent and
aligned.

As noted in the Child Development section of this report, educators would benefit from professional de-
velopment focused on developmentally appropriate milestones.

Center Directors have varying levels of experience implementing Pyramid Model principles and practices.

Looking Ahead:

We have contracted with a consultant to provide a hybrid pilot of Pyramid Model training & coaching. Pre
& post data will be collected.

The hybrid pilot will serve as a model for our Community of Practice structure & content. The COP’s will
start in late fall.

We will utilize the consultant to develop a skills training for Center Directors that will support them to inte-
grate Pyramid Model approach into ongoing supervisions and to serve as a framework for classroom ob-
servations.

The process and system for requesting behavioral health support will be revised and clarified.




ility Services

Disabilities by Category

= Vision
» Autism
® Dev. Delay

® Communication

—_—

Key Findings:

0 There are 5 children enrolled with autism. As of June 2019, there are 4 children currently enrolled who are
awaiting appointments with a developmental pediatrician. We anticipate the number of children with an
autism diagnosis will continue to grow and so will the families needing care for them.

0 The children with autism share a diagnosis but display a spectrum of abilities that range from being pre-
verbal to using language functionally. Most display sensory sensitivity of some kind and struggle socially
and emotionally.

0 All receive special education services through Lowell Public Schools. However, these services do not en-

compass the hours that families need care in order to work full time. Our program enables parents to ac-
cess care beyond the typical school hours and schedule and supports their efforts toward self-sufficiency.

Mid-year Effort Outcomes:

Our mid-year effort was to ensure that children who do not pass the developmental screening receive case manage-
ment and follow-up.

Early Head Start

Failed 12 =i
Referred 9 4
Will Be Referred 0 at this time 0 at this time

Need Case Management 3 2
Had Case Management 2 5



ral Health

o Oral Health
Key Findings:

100

0 With 86% of children being up-to-date on Oral :
Health Care, the program exceeded our goal of 70
75%. Thisis a 2% improvement over our Fall 52
data. iﬁ
Out of those children 12% were diagnosed as iﬁ
needing further treatment. 94% of the children o
diagnosed as needing further treatment actually ] DENTAL EXAMS DENTAL TREATMENT

received the necessary treatment. Thisisa 39% mGoal WFal2018 Spring 2019

increase from the Fall and the first time ever that
we have been able to achieve our goal of 90% in this area. More than half of those that remain untreated

are considered priority families.

comes Over Time

Key Findings:

B Dental Exam Outcomes ¢ Dental exam outcomes have shown
continuous growth over the past
9% L four years. With an overall increase
. of 23%, this includes an increase of
8056 13% from years 2 to 3.
205 67%
63% 0  Successful completion of dental
60% treatment has grown by 42%, with
O Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 aar the most growth between years 3-4.
Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:
Dental Treatment Outcomes We attribute both of these large in-
100% 2l creases to the strong focus on leader-
90% ship follow-up at our newly created Col-
BO% laborative Solutions and Innovations
70% o2 Meetings (CSI), the use of text messag-
60% 52% s ing to communicate with families and
50% Family Service newsletters that include
409 health documentation.
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4
—
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Children’s BMI

Key Findings:

O

The program goal is for less than 15% of the
children in the program to be considered
obese. Currently the rate among our 2-5 year
olds is at 18%. Our data is higher than the na-
tional and state averages.

Current Obesity Rates by Center

The increase in the percentage of children cat-
egorized as obese from Fall to Spring is simply
enrollment based. This occurred due to the
number of overall children who dropped from
the program.

FALL 2018 SPRING 2019

EProgam SCVM @ HC s PARKER ®TC

Current data did not support a correlation be-
tween Child Development outcomes and obesity.

Mid-Year Effort Outcomes

A free farmer’s market is now held at two sites from June-October and is open to all families.

A nutrition curriculum and physical activity program were piloted in Pod A. The Health Promotion Tiger Team will ana-
lyze feedback from educator surveys to seek their opinions on the program. Throughout the summer, the team will
develop systems to collect and analyze child outcome data in year 5 of the grant to enable us to assess the impact the
curriculum has on the children and families.

Staff participated in a Mindfulness workshop during our wellness focused professional development day. This work-
shops was facilitated by Ivy Child International. Knowledge gained will allow educators to introduce these new con-
cepts, such as putting down utensils between bites, in their classrooms.

Although, we were not awarded the Fallon Health or Head Start Garden Grants this year, we will continue to look for
similar grant opportunities that will support our work to decrease our overall obesity percentage. These types of grants
will help us support programs such as yoga and mindfulness in the classrooms, as well as on-site gardens.

s Obesity Rates Overtime

Key Findings and Next Steps:

Obesity Rates by Program ' e Obesity rates have increased 6% in the past 4 years. Rates are shown
. to be even higher for participants enrolled for multiple years.
1% o e Inthe 2019/2020 program year, our Health & Safety Coordinator will
18% = attend the Health Literacy Institute in Maryland. Information gath-
17% ered will support the implementation of more culturally appropriate
15% health education materials. Our hope is to engage families in their
155 14% child’s healthy development at home as well as in school.
o e  During year five of our grant, we will collect BMI data on children
. 12% more frequently throughout the year and will survey families on
i their current nutritional practices at home.
11%
1 e UMass medical students will focus on obesity during their clerkship

¥oar | Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 in the Fall.
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ly Growth and Stability

Spring 2019 Program-Wide Average Daily
Attendance Rate: 86.86%

Average Daily Attendance
Fall 2018/ Spring 2019
Comparison

94.00%
91.70%

I“ |

Parker

92.00% 91.40%

90.60%
90.00%
87 70
88 00%
85,907
86.00%
84.00%
82.00%
80.00%
VM HC

wFali 2018 mSpring 2019

87.10%¢ 70%

TC

Parent, Family, and Community
Engagement (PFCE)

Percentage of Families Identified as At-Risk or In-Crisis
Fall2018/Spring 2019
Comparison

10000
90.00% 87.00% 84.80%

80.00%

70,00%

60.00%

S0.00% A7.00%

40.00% 34.00%

3000% 24.00% 21.00%
20 00%

= E

0.00%
Housing Employment/Adult Education Child Development

®|Fali 2018 »Spring 2019

Goal 1: Children will attend school on a regular basis.
Key Findings:

As a program, we finished at 86% attendance for the
2018/2019 program year. For our mid-year efforts, families
whose attendance dropped below the 85%, were asked to
participate in a focused case management meeting where
they worked closely with their Family Service Workers to
better understand the importance of consistent attend-
ance. These case management meetings also gave time
and space to look into any barriers that may have been oc-
curring in the family preventing that child from coming to
school on a consistent basis. Family Service Workers also
worked closely with the Department of Children and Fami-
lies and the CTIHousing Department in order to keep open
lines of communication and to support the aligned commu-
nication about the importance of consistent attendance.
This also helped our community partners remain aware of
specific barriers that families may have been experiencing.
Attendance remains a focus, as the chart below shows that
33% of absences across the program are for the reason of
staying home.

Median Program-wide Reasons for Absences
33% Stayed Home
35.81% Sick
9.66% Transportation Issues
6.4% Medical Appointments

Goal 2: Families will move towards self-sufficiency.

Key Findings:

The spring scales and ladders for:

¢  Housing shows that 34% of our families who were iden-
tified in-crisis/at-risk in the fall, have moved into the safe
or stable category. We offered a CMS refresher training to
the Family Development staff in January. This assisted
with staff providing referrals for housing and housing
searches. Family Development provided 59 housing assis-
tance referrals this program year. We also had eleven
homeless families acquire housing this year with our as-
sistance.

¢  Child Development had 44% of families who were identi-
fied in-crisis/at-risk in the fall, have moved into a safe or
stable category. We know that 424 families received par-
enting education this program year. Family Development
Staff participated in a two day training in March, entitled
Working with Multi-Stressed Families. Staff report that
this gave them a new perspective an working with fami-
lies that have multiple stressors in their lives. We also
provided trainings on local resources. Staff went off-site
to visit these resources so that they could better assist
their families that may need to utilize them.

¢ Employment and Adult Education found that 38% of our
families who were identified in-crisis/at-risk in the falil,
moved into a safe or stable category. Family Develop-
ment staff have provide resource and referrals to 37 fami-
lies this program year. Eighty-five families were referred
to ESOL classes within the community this program year.
This supports families learning the English language then
they will be able to pursue employment or formal educa-
tion once they graduate from ESOL.
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Goal 3: Families will be ready to support their child’s

learning and engage in the long-term, life-long success of their child.

Key Findings:

As of the Spring of 2019, our program has provided 99% of our Head Start
families and 100% Early Head Start families with a needed service. Our goal
is to provide 90% of our families with at least one service by June 2019.

The highest service provided to date was Health Education. This was due to
FSW’s making a concerted effort to speak with parents about the im-
portance of dental care, immunizations and when to keep a child home
from school due to iliness. The program has seen 86% of children up to
date in dental care. This is a 2% increase from Fall of 2018. Each center also
offered First Aid and CPR to their families. For the 2019-2020 program year,
the Family Development staff will replicate this process with families on
childhood obesity due to our obesity rate being 18% this program year.

Parenting Education has maintained as the second highest service provided
for both Head Start and Early Head Start. Many parents have been involved
in monthly teen parent and focused case management meetings, as well as
bimonthly parent committee meetings, see attendance numbers in the
chart to the right. Our Brain Building Event this year was successful across
all centers this Spring, with approximately 70% of all families attending
these events. Each event had a child development/parenting education
component to it. Due to our data collection of pre and post evaluations, we
know that families feel the offerings we hold are having positive effect on
their children’s development. Pre and Post Questionnaires are being com-
pleted by parents at each event and then again four weeks after the event.

The third highest service provided to Head Start families was emergen-
cy/crisis. FSW’s discuss any crisis situations at enrollment, utilizing our pre-
assessment. This year, the agency began utilizing Lyft for our families that
need transportation services. This has been helpful for families that need
transportation within the Lowell area for appointments, activities and
emergency pick-ups for their children at school. We have seen in increase in
attendance at Home Based Socializations and Parent Policy Council due to
this new partnership with Lyft. Families are also more apt to attend Focused
Case Management meeting when transportation is not a barrier for them.

Mid-Year Effort Outcomes:

Supervisors have been working with Family Development Staff on documentation of their work with families in Child
Plus. It has been documented on monthly supervisions to ensure work and progress with families is being reflected ap-

propriately.

Teen Parent Workshops and Parent

Cafes Topics and (attendance) Spring

2019:

Healthy Eating (15), Literacy (25),
Kindergarten Information (55) , Sci-
ence (27), Stress Management (14),
First Aid (16), Red Flag Development
(3), Indoor Snow Play (6), Financial
Literacy (4), DTA (5), Dealing with
Holiday Stress (9)

The pre and post family engagement

survey data shows that families are:

feeling more comfort to perform CPR
on someone, if needed.

reading to their children and visiting
their local libraries more often. This is
evidenced by the fact that our in-kind
for parent volunteers increased from
2018 to 2019 by 13%.

reporting that they are making
healthier choices when food shop-

ping.

Family Development went to Catie’s Closet and HGRM in Acton to learn about what these non-profits can offer to our
families. Both of these agencies offer furniture, clothing, toiletries, and other household goods and appliances.
FSW’s/HV’s have made several referrals to these organizations on behalf of their families since visiting their sites.
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Information

Lead Teachers/Teachers
Years of Service

5+ Years
a%

2-5Years
26%

O1Years m1-2Years ®2-5Years ®5S+Years W

Assistant Teachers
Years of Service

5+ Years
29%

2-5Years
2%

O1Years m1.2Years m2.5Years m5+Years m

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

2000%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

Teacher Aides
Years of Service

5+ Years

48%

2-5 Years
8%

O1Years m12Years m25Years WS5+Years m

Educator Qualifications

29.40%
2%

3.50%

(DA mAA mBA mMA

Educators Currently Pursuing Degrees

BA ®AS m(DA
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ANSTISS

A{COUNTANT

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
Community Teamwork, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Teamwork, Inc. (a non-
profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. We have also audited the general
purpose consolidated financial statements of Community Teamwork, Inc. and its affiliates as of
and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, Our report on those financial statements dated
November 8, 2018 was unqualified.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

AuDIT
TAX o Lowill, MA o1 ’
ADVISORY SERVICES | F 978 452 250 “



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Teamwork, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

Prior Period Adjustment
As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2018 it was

determined that the risk of loss on uncollectible loans from the Home Modification Loan Program
("HMLP") remains with the HMLP funding source rather than Community Teamwork, Inc.,
therefore no allowance for uncollectible loans is considered necessary. Accordingly, unrestricted
net assets have been restated as of June 2016, and notes receivable - net and unrestricted net assets
have been restated as of June 30, 2017 to reflect this change. Our opinion is not modified with

respect to that matter.

Other Matters

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a

whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, the Housing Programs — DHCD,
Supplemental Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, and the Housing Programs —- DHCD,
Supplemental Schedule of Program Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 8, 2018, on our consideration of Community Teamwork, Inc.’s intemal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Community Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.
d:\,l, L G FPe

Anstiss & Co., P.C.
Lowell, MA
November 8, 2018

ANSTISS ’



Community Teamwork, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investment
Accounts receivable
Due from affiliates - net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Fixed assets
Land, building and equipment - net
Other assets
Notes receivable - net
Beneficial interest in assets held by GLCF
Total other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation
Notes payable
Advances on contracts
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
HMLP liability to CEDAC
Notes payable
Other long-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Unrestricted
Undesignated net assets
Board-designated net assets
Total unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

2018 2017
$ 6,947,924 $ 5,983,616
30,109 -
3,661,966 3,353,461
549,688 537,161
367,846 381,385
11,557,533 10,255,623
9,950,030 10,132,250
4,793,560 4,674,286
176,568 159,946
4,970,128 4,834,232
$ 26,477,691 $ 25,222,105
$ 1,525,373 $ 1,450,461
732,708 791,148
306,072 277,960
3,505,761 3,140,966
1,798,677 1,669,871
7,868,591 7,330,406
6,655,506 6,038,629
5,488,932 5,781,076
231,901 279,965
12,376,339 12,099,670
20,244,930 19,430,076
3,100,569 2,723,128
577,032 406,942
3,677,601 3,130,070
2,555,160 2,661,959
6,232,761 5,792,029
$ 26,477,691 $ 25,222,105

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Non-cash contributions - 0% Financing
Non-cash interest expense - 0% Financing
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from affiliates
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase in notes receivable

Increase in beneficial interest in assets held by GLCF

Increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in accrued vacation
Increase (decrease) in advances on contracts
Increase in HMLP liability to CEDAC
Increase in other liabilities
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of short-term investment
Redemption of short-term investment
Purchase of fixed assets and development property
Net Cash Utilized in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Net Cash (Used) Provided by Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Supplemental Data:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 440,732 $ 1,420,627
- (970,217)

30,046 24,972
906,003 784,531
205,280 58

- 55,328
(313,785) 1,276,590
(212,527) 108,176
13,539 99,946
(119,274) (230,506)
(16,622) (7,448)
74,912 124,625
(58,440) 62,883
364,795 (795,367)
616,377 373,583
80,742 154,952
2,012,278 2,482,733
(30,109) -

. 10,257
(723,783)  (2,522,461)
(753,892)  (2,512,204)
- 3,193,000
(294,078)  (1,019,217)
(294,078) 2,173,783
964,308 2,144,312
5,983,616 3,839,304
$ 6,947,924  $5983,616
$ 220207 § 198,720
$ - 3 -
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 1 — Organization

Community Teamwork, Inc. (the “Organization") was organized in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts as a not-for-profit organization. The Organization provides economic assistance,
through Community Action Programs funded by various federal, state and local agencies, to
eligible clients within its service area. The service area of the Organization includes the City of
Lowell, Massachusetts and its surrounding communities.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Under the accrual method, income and
expenses are recognized when earned or accrued. The costs of providing the various programs and
supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of functional
expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 958-205, “Presentation of Financial
Statements.” Under ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding
its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets,
temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the
Organization is required to present a statement of cash flows.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk,
consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and contract receivables. The Organization maintains
its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts, which at times may exceed federally insured
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management considers
credit risk to be minimal. Credit risk with receivables is concentrated among Federal and State
agencies which comprise substantially all of the receivable balances as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in the Organization’s bank accounts and certificates of

deposit with maturities of three months or less.



Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounts Receivable

Revenue is accounted for at established rates on the accrual basis, less an allowance for contractual,
charitable, and other arrangements for services provided at less than established rates. The
Organization’s policy is to not accrue interest on trade receivables. The Organization records its
accounts receivable at the outstanding principal amount less an allowance for doubtful accounts.
On a periodic basis, the Organization evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on the history of past write-offs, collections, and current
credit conditions. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there was an allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately $131,000 and $214,000, respectively.

Fixed Assets

The Organization capitalizes major purchases of fixed assets (with a cost of $5,000 or more), which
are not in the nature of replacements or repairs. Minor equipment purchases, replacements,
maintenance, and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Capitalized assets are recorded at cost if purchased or constructed, or at fair market value at the
date of the gift, if donated. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets capitalized.

The Organization reviews and evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment is considered to exist if the total estimated future cash flows on an undiscounted basis
are less than the carrying amount of the asset. There was no impairment loss recorded during the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Classification of Net Assets
Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are

classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed

stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations
that may or will be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
It is the Organization’s policy to record temporarily restricted contributions whose
restrictions were met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in accordance
with ASC 958-605 “Revenue Recognition.




Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Classification of Net Assets (continued)
Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Permanently restricted net assets consist of net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations
that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these
assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related
investments for general or specific purposes. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.

Board-Designated Net Assets
Board-designated net assets consist of funds that the board of directors has designated as
replacement reserves for maintenance of several properties owned by the Organization.

Revenue and Expenses

Certain grants and contracts received from govemment agencies are cost reimbursement
agreements. Accordingly, grant and contract income equals expenses incurred; therefore, the
excess (deficit) is carried as a liability (advance on contracts) or as an asset (accounts receivable),
respectively. Revenue is recognized from fixed price or unit based contracts when services have
been rendered. The majority of the Organization’s revenue is from government contracts that
provide for possible review and audit by the contracting agencies. Management has determined
that the results of any potential audit would not result in adjustments that would be material to the

financial statements.

Donated Services
No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services. The Organization

pays for most services requiring specific expertise.

Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization has been granted tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) and is, therefore, generally exempt from federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

ASC 740-10, “Income Taxes” requires the Organization to evaluate and disclose tax positions that
could have an effect on the Organization's financial statements. The Organization reports its
activities to the Internal Revenue Service and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on an annual
basis. These informational returns are generally subject to audit and review by the governmental
agencies for a period of three years after filing.

Substantially all of the Organization’s income, expenditures and activities relate to its exempt
purpose, therefore, management has determined that the Organization is not subject to unrelated
business income taxes and will continue to qualify as a tax-exempt not-for-profit entity.

Expense Allocation

Expenses are allocated among program and supporting services directly based or based on time
records and utilization estimates made by management. Management and General expense
includes those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific function, but
provide for overall support and direction of the Organization. These expenses are allocated based
on an approved indirect cost rate using a modified direct cost base.



Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018 and 2017

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reclassifications

During 2018, certain amounts from the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, “Leases”. ASU 2016-02 includes a lessee accounting model
that recognizes two types of leases: finance leases and operating leases. The standard requires that
a lessee recognize on the statement of financial position assets and liabilities for leases with lease
terms of more than 12 months (leases with terms of less than 12 months are exempt from the new
standard). ASU 2016-02 requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures, providing information
about the amounts recorded in the financial statements. This standard is effective for annual
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organization
is currently evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-02 will have on the financial statements.

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-14, “Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities”. ASU
2016-14 will change the way not-for-profit entities classify net assets and prepare financial
statements. Under the new standard, the three existing classes of net assets (unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) will now become two classes: Net assets
without donor restrictions, and Net Assets with donor restrictions. ASU 2016-14 requires enhanced
reporting of liquidity information, performance measures, investment expenses, functional
expenses, and cash flow information. This standard is effective for annual financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. The Organization is currently
evaluating the effect that ASU 2016-14 will have on the financial statements.

There were no other accounting standards recently issued that had or are expected to have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements and associated disclosures.

Note 3 — Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Land $ 1,352,123 $ 1,352,123
Buildings and improvements 12,747,014 12,465,380
Equipment 3,250,805 2,808,657
Total Fixed assets 17,349,942 16,626,160
Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,399,912) (6,493,910)
Fixed assets — net $9,950,030 $10,132,250

Depreciation expense was $906,003 and $784,531 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

The majority of the Organization’s land, buildings and improvements are subject to deed
restrictions based on agreements with various government agencies which limit their use to
specific programs.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 4 — Capital Lease Obligations

The Organization leases buses under multiple capital lease agreements. The buses have been
recorded at an estimated fair value of $896,132 and $730,142 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, and are being depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 5 years. As of June 30,
2018 and 2017, accumulated depreciation on the buses was $505,472 and $320,845, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the current and long-term portions of the capital lease liabilities
were as follows:

2018 2017
Current portion of capital lease liabilities $ 189,309 $ 157,247
Long-term portion of capital lease liabilities 231,901 279,965
Total capital lease liabilities $421,210 $437212

As of June 30, 2018, the Organization had future minimum capital lease commitments as follows
with imputed interest rates ranging from 3.22% to 5.25%:

Total Imputed Lease

Payment Interest Liability
2019 $ 205,244 $ 15,935 $ 189,309
2020 $ 121,095 $ 8743 $ 112,352
2021 § 78,247 $ 4,289 $ 73,958
2022 $ 40,743 $ 1,387 $ 39,356
2023 $ 6276 $ 4] $ 6,235

Note 5 — Notes Receivable

The Organization has an agreement with the Community Economic Development Assistance
Corporation (“CEDAC”) to administer a Home Modification Loan Program (“the Program™)
which offers loans to eligible property owners. Under the Program, loans are made to finance
modifications to homes to provide for the needs of elders or persons with disabilities. The loans
are secured by mortgages on the borrowers’ homes and carry annual interest rates of 0% or 3%.
The majority of the loans are interest-free, with repayment required when the property is sold or
the title is transferred. The 0% and 3% amortized loans require monthly payments, with payment
terms between 5 and 15 years depending on the loan amount. In November 2017, CEDAC
announced that the 0% and 3% amortized loan programs have been discontinued, and the
maximum loan amount has been raised from $30,000 to $50,000 with the interest-free principal
balance due upon the sale of the related property.

The outstanding balance of the HMLP loan pool at June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $4,623,251 and
$4,439,837, respectively. There is no allowance for uncollectible loans as the risk of loss on the
uncollectible loan amounts is with the funding source (CEDAC).

Proceeds from the repayment of loans will be used to make new loans under the program. Upon
termination of the program, all assets of the HMLP Program are to be returned to CEDAC.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 5 — Notes Receivable (continued)
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the HMLP liability to CEDAC was as follows:

2018 2017
HMLP restricted cash $ 2,032,255 $ 1,598,792
HMLP loans receivable 4,623,251 4,439,837
HMLP liability to CEDAC $ 6,655,506 $ 6,038,629

Note 6 — Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by GLCF

In 2000, the Organization’s Board of Directors established an irrevocable agency endowment fund
for its benefit at Greater Lowell Community Foundation (“GLCF”). The fund agreement grants a
variance power to the GLCF that allows for the modification of the agreement by GLCF in certain
limited circumstances. The purpose of the fund is to provide the Organization with an annual
distribution of unrestricted support in accordance with a spending policy adopted by the
Community Foundation's board. The current spending policy allows for an annual distribution of
5% of the average value of the fund. Through June 30, 2018, the Organization has transferred
$115,680 to the GLCF and has received distributions of $31,903. There were no contributions to
the fund during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Funds in the amount of $7,523 was
distributed from the fund during the year ended June 30, 2017. There were no funds disbursed
during the year ended June 30, 2018. In accordance with ASC 958-605, “Transfers of Assets to a
Not-for Profit Organization or Charitable Trust That Raises or Holds Contributions for Others,”
the fund has been reported as an asset of the Organization. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
Organization’s beneficial interest in the funds held by GLCF was $176,568 and $159,946,
respectively. Net gains (losses) attributed to the fund (including realized and unrealized gains and
losses, interest and dividend income and administration fees) amounting to $16,622 and $14,971
for the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, have been included in the statements of
activities.

Note 7 — Line of Credit

The Organization maintained a line of credit at Enterprise Bank and Trust Company in the amount
of $2,000,000 for each of the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The interest rate applied to the
outstanding principal balance is 1% above the prime rate (6% at June 30, 2018 and 5.25% at June
30, 2017). The line is collateralized by substantially all of the Organization’s assets, except real
property. There was no outstanding balance on the line as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 8 — Notes Payable
2018 2017

Notes payable to Enterprise Bank & Trust Company in
the original principal amounts of $210,000, $1,810,750,
up to $880,000, $1,700,000, $940,000, and 30,500. The
first note is payable in 120 monthly installments at an
interest rate of 4.46%. The second note is payable in 300
monthly installments at an interest rate of 2.68%. The
third note is payable in 306 monthly installments at an
interest rate of 4.59%. The fourth note is payable in 120
monthly installments at an interest rate of 4.25%. The
fifth note is payable in 120 monthly installments at an
interest rate of 4.34%. The sixth note is payable in 60
monthly installments at an interest rate of 4.75%. All six
notes are secured by the related properties. $ 3,212,673 $ 3,432,598

Note payable to Lowell Five Cent Savings Bank in the
original principal amount of 1,487,500. The note is
payable in 360 monthly installments at an interest rate
of 4.15% and is secured by the related property. 1,453,296 1,476,919

Notes payable to Community Economic Development
Assistance Corporation in the original principal amount
of $249,222 (Note A), $700,000 (Note B), $1,000,000
(Note C), and $250,000 (Note D). The notes are interest-
free and mature on June 2, 2035, January 23, 2042, and
September 30, 2046 (for both Note C and D),
respectively. Note A has been reduced by $158,675,
Note B has been reduced by $529,144, and Note C and
D have been reduced by $944,688 to reflect the present
value of the notes utilizing a 6%, 6%, and 5% interest
rate, respectively. The notes are secured by the related

properties.
Total at face value 2,199,222 2,199,222
Less: deferred interest expense (1.632.507) (1.662.553)

Total - net of deferred interest expense 566,715 536,669



Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 8 — Notes Payable (continued)

2018 2017
Notes payable to Lowell Development and Financial
Corporation in the original principal amounts of
$50,000 and $250,000. The first is a demand note
payable in 28 monthly installments at an interest rate of
5%. The second is a commercial note payable in 360
monthly installments at an interest rate of 5%. Both
notes are secured by the related properties. 286,645 292,047
Notes payable to the Small Business Administration to
fund a microloan program in the original principal
amounts of up to $400,000. The notes provide for
interest rates of up to 1.625% depending on the average
size of the microloans made through the program,
subject to an annual recalculation. No payments were
due during the first years, with the balance of the first
note payable in 108 monthly installments and the
balance of the second noted payable in 98 monthly
installments. 275,675 320,803
Total Notes Payable 5,795,004 6,059,036
Less: Current Portion of Notes Payable (306,072) (277,960)
Long-Term Portion of Notes Payable $ 5,488,932 $ 5,781,076
The future minimum payments on notes payable at June 30" are as follows:

2019 $ 306,072

2020 316,856

2021 328,342

2022 336,672

2023 345,326

Thereafter 5,794,243

Total 7,427,511

Less: Deferred Interest Expense (1,632,507)

Total — Net of Deferred Interest Expense $ 5,795,004



Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2018 and 2017

Note 9 — Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following as of June 30%:

2018 2017
Interest-free debt $ 1,632,507 $ 1,662,553
Phoenix Avenue Building — Property located in Lowell,
MA to be used for “Head Start” program activities. 551,910 629,145
Contract and grant funds — Funding restricted as to
purpose for use in specific program activities. 370,743 370,261
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 2,555,160 $ 2,661,959

Additional loans made through the Microloan Program and capitalized improvements to the
Phoenix Avenue property are reported as Other Net Asset Transfers on the Statement of Activities.

Note 10 — Contract Revenue and Client Payments

The Department of Public Health administers the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (“WIC”). For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the value of food
vouchers provided to WIC recipients was recorded as contract revenue and client payments at
amounts of $2,166,617 and $2,231,454.

Note 11 — Rental Income
The Organization leases space to persons of low income and non-profit organizations under
operating leases. Rental income for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $154,775 and

$167,616, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018, minimum future rentals on non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2019 $ 127,231
2020 $ 130,412
2021 $ 133,672

Note 12 — Leases
The Organization leases equipment and various facilities throughout the greater Lowell area under

both short-term and long-term operating leases. Rent expense under all leases amounted to
$1,200,843 and $1,311,564 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018, the Organization had minimum operating lease commitments as follows:

2019 $ 973,124
2020 $ 840,820
2021 $ 837,247
2022 $ 857,515
2023 $ 717,522
Thereafter $ 957,138
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 13 — Retirement Plan

The Organization provides retirement benefits for its employees through the Community
Teamwork, Inc. Retirement Plan. The plan provides for employer contributions 5% of annual
compensation. Employees are eligible to receive contributions after six months of service with a
vesting schedule graduated from one to three years of service. Retirement expense was $740,294
and $628,313 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Note 14 — Interest Expense

The Organization follows the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of property,
plant, and equipment constructed for its own use. Total interest incurred and charged to operations
was $250,253 and $223,692 during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. No
interest was capitalized during either of the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Note 15 — Contingencies

From time to time, the Organization may become involved in litigation relating to claims arising
out of operations in the normal course of business, which are considered routine and incidental to
the business. The Organization is currently not a party to any legal proceedings which, in
management’s opinion, would have a material adverse effect on its financial condition.

The Organization is a guarantor on a line of credit and various notes payable held by Common
Ground Development Corporation (“CGDC”), and its affiliated organizations. The balance due on
these debt obligations was $12,142,647 and $12,230,803 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and

2017, respectively.

The Organization is also the guarantor on various agreements of the Towne School Limited
Partnership ("TSLP") and SB2 Housing Limited Partnership (“SB2”) (affiliates of CGDC) housing
projects sponsored by the Organization and CGDC, such as cost overrun obligations, adjuster
distributions, recapture distributions, recapture payments, operating deficit capital contributions,
and unauthorized withdrawal liability payments. The Organization does not expect to perform
under the guarantees as CGDC, TSLP and SB2 have met all related obligations as of June 30,
2018.

The Organization receives funding from various governmental agencies that is subject to review
and audit by the funding agency. The Organization does not expect that the results of any such
audit, if it were to incur, would result in any material adjustment to revenue received.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 16 — Related Party Transactions
The Organization engages in transactions with affiliated organizations whose boards of directors

are comprised mainly of the Organization’s officers, directors, and employees.

The Organization leases a building located at 167 Dutton St. in Lowell, MA from Mechanics Hall
Corporation (“MHC?”). Rent expense under this lease was $74,362 and $73,630 for the years ended
June 30,2018 and 2017, respectively. MHC incurred management fees totaling $2,469 and $1,975
during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for the payroll and related expenses
of the Organization’s employees who performed services on behalf of MHC. As of June 30, 2018
and 2017, MHC’s liability to the Organization was $199,129 and $163,503, respectively.

The Organization provides management services to Merrimack Valley Housing Services, Inc.
(*“MVHS”). MVHS incurred reimbursable expenses totaling $19,855 and $11,317 during the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, for the payroll and related expenses of the Organization’s
employees who performed services on behalf of MVHS. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
MVHS's liability to CTI was $5,418 and $1,480 respectively.

The Organization advances funds to Community Housing, Inc. (“CHI”) to pay for operating
expenses and administrative support. The Organization incurred reimbursable expenses totaling
$22,917 and $20,694 during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for the payroll
and related expenses of the Organization’s employees who performed services on behalf of CHI.
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Organization’s accounts receivable included amounts due from

CHI of $16,253 and $7,092, respectively.

The Organization advances funds to Common Ground Development Corporation (“CGDC”) to
pay for predevelopment costs, operating expenses, and administrative support. The Organization
incurred reimbursable expenses totaling $226,500 and $232,018 during the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively, for the payroll and related expenses of the Organization’s employees
who performed services on behalf of CGDC. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Organization’s
accounts receivable included amounts due from CGDC of $328,005 and $365,061, respectively.
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization forgave $200,000 of receivables due from
CGDC. There was no such forgiveness during the year ended June 30, 2017. During the year ended
June 30, 2017, the Organization paid a developer fee of $92,000 to CGDC. There was no developer
fee paid to CGDC during the year ended June 30, 2018.

The Organization provides management services to StonyBrook I Housing Services, Inc. ("SB1").
During the year ended June 30, 2018, SB1 incurred expenses totaling $2,592 for the payroll and
related expenses of the Organization's employees who performed services on behalf of the SB1.
There were no expenses incurred for the payroll and related expenses of the Organization's
employees who performed services on behalf of the Organization during the period ended June 30,
2017. As of June 30, 2018, the Organization’s account receivable included amounts due from SB1
of $417. There was no balance receivable from SB1 as of June 30, 2017.
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2017

Note 17 — Prior Period Adjustment

During the year ended June 30, 2018, it was determined that the risk of loss on uncollectible loans
from the Home Modification Loan Program ("HMLP") remains with the HMLP funding source,
Community Economic Development Assistance Corporation (“CEDAC”), rather than with the
Organization, therefore no allowance for uncollectible loans from this program is considered
necessary. Accordingly, unrestricted net assets have been restated as of June 2016, and notes
receivable - net and unrestricted net assets have been restated as of June 30, 2017 to reflect this
change.

As of June 30, 2016, the following amounts have been restated:

As
Previously
Stated Adjustment As Restated
Statement of activities:
Unrestricted net assets $ 2,410,858 $ 170,000 $ 2,580,858
As of June 30, 2017, the following amounts have been restated:
As
Previously
Stated Adjustment As Restated
Statement of financial position:
Notes receivable - net $ 4,504,286 $ 170,000 $ 4,674,286
Unrestricted net assets $ 2,960,070 $ 170,000 $ 3,130,070

Note 18 — Subsequent Events

ASC 855-10, “Subsequent Events” defines further disclosure requirements for events that occur
after the statement of financial position date but before financial statements are issued. In
accordance with ASC 855-10, the Organization’s management has evaluated events subsequent
from June 30, 2018 through November 8, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. There has been no material event noted during this period that would either
impact the results reflected in this report or the Organization’s results going forward.
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ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
Community Teamwork, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Teamwork, Inc. (a non-profit organization), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 8, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community

Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Teamwork, Inc.’s financial

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.
M" G,Pc.

Anstiss & Co., P.C.
Lowell, MA
November 8, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by The Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors of
Community Teamwork, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Teamwork, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Community Teamwork, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2018. Community Teamwork, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Teamwork,
Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Community Teamwork, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community
Teamwork, Inc.’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Teamwork, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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TAX | pamceron Cos i P15 W ‘ ¢ 8 23
ADVISORY SERVICES | P 978 452 2500 o f : -



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Teamwork, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Community
Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Teamwork, Inc.’s internal control over

compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.
(nfr G A

Anstiss & Co., P.C.
Lowell, MA
November 8, 2018
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Community Teamwork, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? ___yes ¥ no
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? ____yes v none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ___yes ¥ none reported
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified? ____yes vV no
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? ____yes ¥ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes v no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.881 Moving to Work Demonstration Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type
B programs: $1,772,768

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v yes no

Section 11 — Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

Section I1I — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.

25



60£°S91 HAN610669810¥92AD0DS 968Vl UOHENTIqeYay 1elopoJA
8 UOI103g - WeI30id 0ur)SISSY SUISNOY SWOOU] JSMO]
10¥°L8T wedo1] sIe) Jo WNNURUo)) - [B10],
LES OLINVIOHILA910018ADO
T6£°TS OILNVIDSIOA910018AD0
EEI'TT OILNVIDLSNALIO018ADO
61E9€T OTLNVEDLISNA10018AD0
020 OTLNVEOSIDAST0018AD0 L9T¥1 weiSold a1e) Jo wnnupuoy)
18911 1Z1Z229DSTNI910008AD0 1€Cyl wiesgold sjueln 193[ayg AousSiowy
9rTHO1 SSINLT0669812+92AD0DS I81°%1 (118 Uonoag) sanI[IqesI( Ym SuosIag Joy Sutsnol sanioddng
SNSSTYSESSEIA] JO [I[B8MUOUIUIO,) —- [INOI}-SSE]
18+°501 SJUBID) JUSWANINUH/AURID) Yo0[d JuswidoeAa( AJUntIwo)) [210],
008°CH 00-T2650081
009°L 00-81550081
00£°0 00-615S0081
009°L 00-£61+S0081
188°F¢ 00-1SE0LLTE
00£9 00-0TSS0081 81CTV1 SJURID JUSWIHUF AURID Joo[g JuswdojaAd( Ayunuruio))
M0 JO A1) — Yonosy-sseq
09y § AdT88VIN 6L8 V1 SISYONOA Weansurejy
Ja1sn[) IsydnoA Suisnoy
ywwdopadq ueqa) pue Suisnogy jo jwunaedsaq 'S
saarpuadxy syuaidioaIgng o) Jaquunpn Isquimp
[eropog ysnoxny[, passeq penuo) vai

8107 ‘0€ dunp papuy Jedx dY) 104
SPIBAY [eI9Pay Jo saanyipuadxy Jo anpaydg
U] ‘YIoMUWEd], AJUNWUO))



91 10-10-£1801406 709°€6
897°1SE°L
TS STIS €0-E€¥TOTHO10
92L'STTT 20-€H¥ZOTHDI10 009°€6
9¢4°769°62
90$°GET
€TEL9 110091H-VIA
759°08 €00ASTH-VIA
1€5°L8 11009 TH-VIN ISz
661911 SSA1Z0669810v97AD0DS 968Vl
880°055°97 MINST0669815+9TAD0IS 188°¥1
S0E°LSS T
TST°98T dNA910669811+97AD0IS
€50°10€°T ADHP10669810v9ZAD0DS 1L8¥1
mog%nomxm— muﬁum...:oogasm 0] HOQESZ aon_E.:Z

[erepag y3nouyJ, passed 1RHU0D vaiad

wersoid UoneIISUOWS( 9ouspuadopu] 10J Sjassy
Mel§ pesH [ej0L

Hels peay
$3J1AIIG uBINY pue P[edy Jo jusunaedaq 'S

wawdoraaa(] ueqin) pue Suisnop jo Jusweda( ‘S’ [eI0L
SAIV Yum suosisd 103 ssutuniioddQ Susnoy - [pjo],

SAIV Ym suosiag 1oy sanmunuoddo Susnoyy
SJMIISUT 20IN0SIY 930SN[ —- YoNOII-558q

wrei01d AOUSIOYNG J[OS [CIOURUL]
wei3o1d UONBISUOWR(] YO 0} SUIAOIA]
Iarsn|) J9yonoA Sursnoy] fejo ],
$19YIN0A 3010UD SuIsnoy g uonoss
I9ysn])) 19yono A Sursnogy

(Ponunuo3] SYISSNYSESSEA] JO [IBSMUOIINI0,) — [SN0II-SSeq
(panuyuoo) yuemdopasq ueqa) pue Fuisnoy jo yuswmredaq ‘s

8T0T ‘0€ dunp papuy Jeax ayj 1o
SpleMy [219pay Jo saan)ipuadxy jo s[npaydsg
U] “Yromuwied J, Ayrunwwo))



8¢

£66°209°¢

9T 8¢ dSddVALALINNWNOD00 1

TIEvTy dITTLALINNAWOD0T000%

000°S1Z THddVALALINNANOD00EE

9¢8°CE1 NLddVALALINNWNINOD00ZE

06V°29¥ dSddVALALINNWINOD001€

0SLYV6L 1 HISOALINNWINODO 1000

00ZC TOOdXATILNOONHAL810Z

008°01¥ [0VINddNSYOJIOTIdS810T

6£1°CC1 THINOINI'TOOIXATA810T 855°€6

£LS°8TS

€ECTELE 0001199098 100ZyAD0DS

0vT'ss1 0001 1DE09L100ZvADODS 695°€6

0v1°02L'8

L8L°T7T8 091dHI'T8SL100vYADO0d

¥SL'S8 00080MHSSLI00vPAD0DS

6v9°T6¢ 00080MHLSST00vPAD0DS

0S6°81H°L 091dHI'TLS8 100¥¥AD00d 895°¢6

sarmpuadxy syua1dioaIgng 0} Jaquump JaquinN
[e1opayq y3noryy, passed 1enuo) vaid

satqiure § ApaaN 10§ soue)sissy Arerodwia] 810,

sal[Iwe Apes| 10 Jour)sissy Aresodua],
eI Yoo[q SOIAISS AUNUIO)) [BI0],
JUBID) JOO[g] SIAIRG ANUNUIIO,)

20UB)SISSY AS19UF SO SWOOU[-MOT [BIOL

20UR)SISS Y ASIoUY SWOH SWOIU[-MO ]
SNISNUIESSEIA] JO YI[E9MUCWITIO.) -~ [INOI-SS8q
(panunuod) s3dMAIG UBWINY pue ey Jo Jusuntedaq ‘S

8107 “0€ dunp papujy Jedx ay) Aoy
SPIEAY [2I2P3] JO saamyipuadxy Jo A npaydg
U YaoMwes ], AJjunwuwo’)



¥81°688°CC S30IAIDS UBTUNE] pue ([esH Jo juswieds( 'S [eI0L
880°989°C BISN[D ADD [e10L
AN puny yuawdo[aAd(] pue 1. Py ays Jo
spun,f Suryorey pue LIojEpuely a1e) PIYD 1e10L,
189°C¢ dSddVALALINIIANINOD001
TLY'LS JITILLALINNININOD0T1000+
€22°62 THddVALALINNININODO0EE
SS0°8T NLIdVHLALINNNINOD00ZE
PSEE6E dSddVHALALINNNINODO00T €
h6'Ere HISOALINNNINODOT000€
66T TOOdXHTIINODNAALSI0Z
T6£°6vE [OVINddNSAOJIOTIdS810T
109°91 TAHNOINITOOIXTT4810T 965°¢6 pun,J juswdojeAa(] pue s1e) piyy oy jo
spun,{ Surysely pue KI0jepueiy sre) PIYUD
698VHS° 1 jueID) oo Juewdo[eAd(] 1) Py [elo],
8T6°LS dSddVAILALINNWNOD00 T+
1,8°9C dITTLALINNININOD0 10001
919°¢c1 THddVALALINNNINOD00EE
40" NILIdVALALINNININOD00ZE
91T°L69 dSddVALALINONINOD001 €
8S9°CI1 HISOALINNININOD0T1000€
6¢t1 TOOdXHTILNODNAAL810C
6T°619 [OVINAdNSIOdIONId810Z
SELL THINODINITOOdXTT4810C SLSE6 Juern yooyq usmdo[oas(y a1e) pryo
=IsN[D 4ADD
(PoNUNU0S] SSSYDSESSEJA JO (P[EIMUOTIUIO,) - YINON]}-SSEg
(Panunuod) SINAIIS UEWINY Pue YYEI[] JO Jusunpredaq ‘s
saxmypuadxsy SIURIAId2JGNS 0} JoquunN Joquun N
[elopag ySnomy], passeq enuUo) vaion

8107 ‘0€ dunp papuy Iedx ay) 1og
SpieMy [edapay Jo saanipuadxy Jo S[npayog
U] ‘YIomured |, AJunuwmo))



0¢

8TLISYT

6SSELET

7LE'680°1 00-918Z008 1

L8IVTT 00-SE£1200L1 61¥'v8

691°8€1

85£°C6 00-9¥L£0081

LES6€ 00-6SLE00LT

vLT'E 00-S91S00LI SIZTV8

€51°269°¢ $96°501

6¥8°1 0019ZLT91E0NZOSEALNI 8LS01

TP1°091

01ET VLIIZESOLIZSLETAOADS

$€6°SST VLIIZESOLOYSLITHOADS

11 VLIIZESOLASSLSTHOADS

39 VLIIZESOLDSSLSTIHOADS 855701

120°S1¢S HZ11ZES0LVRSLSTHOUDS §66°01

LOT'S06°T

L19°991°C Y6TLILOOZOIL00SEALNI

065°8€L 00192LT91E0INZ0SEALNI LSS 01

$€6°601 #9601 STETTO0BEEIOE §TTO1

mo.:#_ﬁzuaxm mwcumm:uoun_ﬁm 0} uoﬂszz .ELESZ.
~ﬁ.~u—uu Ll ﬁ_wso.ﬂrﬁ vommdm joenuo) YVadD

8107 ‘0€ dunp papuy JedX oY) 104

SpIeAMY [e19pay Jo saanjipuadxy Jo aynpayog

U] ‘YIoMmed ], AJlunwuio))

uoryeanpq jo juaweda( [w0],

sueln) Juawdo]aAa(] [ooyosald
uoleonpy Jo juswasoiduwi] Y3 Jof punyj [€10],
uonesnpy Jo juswioaosduuy sy 1oy punyg
uoyeanpy jo judurpredo(g
aynousy Jo juswupeda(] [e10],
(SDM) sae1s 01 sprern DIm

weI3o1q pooy are) Jnpy pue Py [e1oL

wer3o1d poo,f ale) NPy pue pryD
weIdold youn'] [00YoS [BUOTIEN
URIPIYD) PUR ‘SIURIU] “‘USWIOA [BIOL
(€ 2ON) ULIP[IYD pue “SJUBIU] ‘USWOM

oy wresSo1g uonny Tejuswoalddng reroads
S)ISNSBSSEJA] JO [I[E9MUOLUTIO,) — YoNOI}-SSeq

195(01 Spoo] Ajununuos)
M3y Jo ywunaeda( ‘S



3

LIL191

L9LT9T 0Pe000VYid 1£6°S1

Lb¥'69€

sT8op 00-65170081 65T'LI

729°8T¢

$99°0ST ST-V-09-L1-001€-dA

LS6°LL STV-09-¥1-9819C-dA VLT LT

626709

02696 EV00T100VINHANS | 90076

LLO'LYY

1LT°TLT CO0VIANVOS9I 910'v6

908'VLI E00VINVASII L10°%6

78809 LOOVINVYISLI 20076

SIMIpUaxs] syus1dioaiqng o) IaqunN Ioquunp
[exopag y3noxy], pesseq JoRIUOY) vaid

8107 ‘0€ dunyp papuy Jedx 3y} 104

IoLsju] 9y Jo Justupeda(] w10,

SUOLEZIUBSZIO) JIAISS [INO X Aq SOIIALIY UOBAIISUOL)
Jo1)uf 3y o Jusurpieda(

loqeT jo jusunaeda(] (€10,
VOIM - plInqypno x
PImQumno X [ejo],

pimquyno &
doqeq yo juommreda(q

0IAJRS AJIUNUIOY) PuE [eUOHEN Joj uoneiodio) ejo]

sdioonowry
V'S P[Iqyno X -- ysnory-ssed

Jasnp) uoruedwo)) Jorusg/uaredpueln) 19)50,] [e10],
weidolq uorredwo)) Jorusg

weidoid Juaredpuein) 19750,
J9ysn|) uoruedwo)) J01usg / usredpuein) 19)50,

weiSoiq J9UNJOA IOIUSS PUE PaIsy
NNAIIS Aunwwio)) pue [euone) 105 uonetodio)

SpAeAMYy [B13pay] Jo sainjipuadxy Jo ajnpayos

2U[ “YpIoMwEd ], AyIunmwo))



(43

TSO'LT

TSO°LI

LLTYS

LLTYS

000°SL

000°SL

vEV'6L

vEV 6L
SLL'9T
659°CS

9L00-A-L1-QHVES

NON

120-0001Sv

CT00-X4-N1-¥10T
1T00-XA-N-910C

UOHENSIUIWPY SSauIsng [[eWS [210],

9065 90UB)SISS Y [EOIUYD3 ],
UORENSIUIWPY SSIUISNY [[eWUS

A8rouq jo yusuneda(] 210,
V0’18 SUOSIaJ SWOIU[-MO'] I0] 30URISISSY UONRZLISYIRI M

"oU] TIUNOY UoNSY ATUNUIWO.) 30USIME ] JoJeall) - [BNOII-SSeq
£319uyq jo yusunaedaq

A1noag pueowol Jo juswiredacy (810,

¥Z0'L6 wedo1d preog [eUONEN J8}[oYS pue poo,] AsusSiours
Aundag puepwop jo yuaowiedagq

3onsnf Jo Jusunreda [ejo].

wergold SuLIOuSA S[TUSAN[ €10 ],

saIpuadxyg syuardioaigng o}
[BIOP] ysnoxy |, pesseq

Jaquinn
613111079

92L 91 wreidold SULIOJUAIA o[IusAnf
V'S PIIMQUINO A -~ YSnoLgy-sseqd
sansnr Jo yudunaeda(
JoquinN
vaio

8T0T ‘0€ dunp papuy Jea oY) 104
SpIeMy [19pdy Jo saamipuadxy jo spnpayog

U] YIoMwed ], Ajrunwuo))



€e

087°760°6S §  +96°SO1 $ Splemy [eJapaj Jo saannpuadxy [ejof
ELSY Anseai], ayj jo Jusuneda(] [e1o],
£LS'Y NOW 60012 werSold Juein) Sungorep]
(V.LIA) S0uejsIsSy Xe] Suwioduy Io9junjo
UORJY AJIUNWIUIOY) JOf UOTRIO0SSY SHSSMUIBSSEIA - [oNOIJ-SSeq
Aansealy ay jo Jusunypieda(q
saimrpuadxyg syua1droaiqng 0} Jaquuinp IoquinN
esspa,] ySnoxy], passed JoRIUOD) vain

8107 ‘0€ dunp papuy JedX 3y} 104
Spaemy [e13pay Jo saanyipuadxy Jo spnpayag
U] ‘YIoMWEd I, AJlunwiwio))



143

wre1so1 Jofely 4

'L19°991°T$ sem spuatdroar DI 03 papraoid s10ysnoa pooy Jo anfea sy ‘107 ‘0 aunf papud
Teak 3y 104 *(DIM.,,) USIP[IYD) PUE ‘SIUBJUT ‘UIWOM 10} wrerdold poo, [eyuswsjddng [erdadg ayy siosturuipe UieaH o1jgnd jo jusunredag
SHISNYOLSSLIN 3Y], "PISINGSIP pUe PIAIRAI SINJIPOWWIOD ) JO SN[eA JBW IIe] oY) Je 3[NP3Yog o) Ul paysodal I 90Ue)SISSE ATRISUOWIUON

SA9YINOA pooy - € 3)oN

‘9QUEPIND WHOFIUL) S1) JOpUN PIMO[[E el 1S00 192XIpul SIWUIUTW 3P JUd0I3d-( | AU} 9N 0) 10U Pa1aa[d Sey] “ou] JIoMWes ], AJunuwuio))

USWSSINQUIISI 0 SE PAjII] 3JE 10 S[qeMmO][e Jou dIe saamipuadxa Jo sad4) urepsd ursioym ‘d0uBpING ULIOJIU[) 3Y) ul paurejuod sajdround
1500 a1 Fuimol[oy paziudooar are sanyipusdxa yong ‘Sununosoe Jo siseq [enidoe ay) uo papiodar re SNpPayog oY) uo papiodar saxmipusdxy
SanIjoJ SUPUN0IY JuLdIUSIS Jo Arewmng - 7 3)0N

"oU[ “yIomues ] AJIunwiwo))

JO SMOJ Used 10 ‘s)asse jou Ul sagueyo ‘uonisod [eroueuly oYy jussaid 10U S30p pue 0} PSpusjul J0u SI 31 “ou] ‘YIoMwea] Apunwiwor)
Jo suonesado oy jo uorod pajosjas e Auo sjussaid o[npayog oy osneoaq ‘(J0UBPING ULIOJIU()) SPMY [D40p2y AOf Spuswanbay
upny puv ‘sajdiourid 500 ‘spuoudanbay aapASUIpY wiofiuf) 007 1bg SuonpISay [p4apa.g fo apo) ‘SN 7 SPLL Jo suswannbal
U} Y3 30UEPIOdIE Ul PJUasald ST S[NPaYds SIY) Ul UOHEBWLIOJUT SY T, "§ 10T ‘0€ SUN[ Popus Jeak 3y} JOJ JUSWUWISA0S [eJapa] oy} Jo swerSord
apun “ouf JIomuwes], AIUNWWOY) JO ANANOE pIeme [2IopaJ OY) SSpN[oul Spieme [e1opa] Jo samyipuadxa jo a[npoyos SuiKuedwoose sy,
U0EIUISIAJ JO SISeq - | AJON

8T0Z ‘0€ dunp papufy 1es3 X dy) 104
SpaeMy [eJapay Jo saanppuadxy jo apnpoydg
U] MJoMuWed ], AHIUNWUO))



